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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Tanana Mission, constructed sometime between 1899 and 1905,
served native people of the Tower Tanana and middle Yukon rivers
until it was abandoned during the early 1940's. The cemetery sur-
rounding the church structure contains graves of natives and non-
natives and continues to be used as a burial site. The four-gabled
structure is similar in style to another Alaskan Episcopal church,
St. Peter's-By-The-Sea, in Sitka. The Tanana Mission, however, is
distinguished by its combination of log and frame structure, the
careful application of the shingled exterior siding and roofing and
the fine treatment of the extensive tongue-and-groove interior
finishing.

The church structure with its high multi=gable roof measures
approximately 52x48 feet (see attached figures). On the east side
of the interior is a raised platform on which stood the altar. The
altar was flanked on the south by an entrance and on the north by a
room probably used for the storage of vestments. The north section
served as a place to display the deceased during wakes and the bal-
cony over this section was perhaps intended for a choir. A stairway
to the balcony begins in the partitioned northwest corner of the
structure. From the floor of this section is a crawl space leading
to the cavity on the west which contained a wood-burning stove
which served to heat the church. Entrances into the church were
located in the southwest and southeast corners which faced the
river. No additions or alterations to the church appear to have
been made.

The landscape surrounding the church was originally cleared of
trees and bushes. Today, a second growth of spruce and birch occurs
as well as a wild grass vegetation cover. The initial location of
the graveyard was to the east of the church and contains individual
as well as family gravesites surrounded by wooden picketed fences,

a traditional aspect of native graves in this area. The graveyard
has since extended to the south and west of the church.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Tanana Mission today is the abandoned church building and
cemetery of the once extensive Episcopalian Mission of Our Saviour
with its church, hospital, sawmill, cemetery, rectory, school lo- |
cated nearly three miles above the present village of Tanana. The |
significance of the Tanana Mission as an historic district is multi- |
faceted. First, it is important to the history of interior Alaska
as a place where permanent native (Indian) community was established
near the mission which located itself opposite the prehistoric
trading center of many interior Athapaskan Indians - Nuchalawoyya.
Second, the mission represents a place where native people learned
and participated in the activities of a foreigh culture especially
its religious customs. It is also the burial site of the ancestors
of many Tanana residents. Finally, the church of the mission rep-
resents a unique style of architecture in early 20th century Alaska.
The adjacent graveyard, however, depicts traditional picketed fence
construction around individual and family graves typical of many
native cemeteries in interior Alaska.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE TANANA MISSION

With the establishment of the Tanana Mission near the mouth of
the Tanana River, the Episcopal church in Alaska created a center for
missionary activity among Indians of the lower Tanana and middle
Yukon rivers. It's history begins with the Church Missionary Society
of England that established a mission in 1888 under the direction
of Reverend T.H. Canham near the mouth of the Tozitna River, 11 miles
below Tanana (Brooks 1973:475). The mission, called St. James' Mission,
was situated near the trading post of Arthur Harper - Harper's
Station - where native people from along the Yukon and Tanana rivers
brought furs to exchange for non-native products such as firearms,
ammunition, tea, flour and tobacco. In 1891, the mission was turned
over to the Reverend J.L. Prevost of the Methodist Episcopal Church
who remained in charge of the mission for the next fifteen years
(Brooks 1973:475). Following his appointment, Reverend Prevost and
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Peter Trimble Rowe, Bishon of Alaska, located a new site for the
mission in 1896 on the right bank of the Yukon opposite the tra-
ditional native trading center, Nuchalawoyya, at the junction of
the Yukon and Tanana rivers. That fall a 300x100 foot clearing
was made at the new site where a 1og cabin from the old mission
was situated (U.S. Survey 1906:384). The new mission was named
Mission of Our Saviour (Rowe 1920:83). A sawmill was placed near
the clearing in 1898 and another cabin constructed. Before the
turn of the 20th century, work on the church building had begun
with money donated by a Mary Rhinelander King (Rowe 1906:83) and
the first native house near the mission was built. By the end of
the first decade of the 20th century, the Mission of Our Saviour
(Tanana Mission) had received patent to 485 acres of land solely
for "missionary purposes" on which a church, hospital, sawmill,
cemetery, rectory, school reserve and some 13 native houses were
situated (U.S. Survey 1906:394). With these structures the Tanana
Mission was able to undertake its missionary pursuits for the
religious instruction, health care and education of the native
populace of the area.

ACTIVITIES OF THE MISSION

The personnel of the Tanana Mission throughout the 20th century
sought to serve native people in the promotion of their welfare.
Bishop Rowe of the Episcopal Diocese of Alaska stated in the appli-
cation for patent to the land that a large part of the land was
devoted to "agricultural and industrial pursuits" for the "education
and betterment and welfare of the adjacent Indian communities..."
(U.S. Survey 1906:393). To bring these new and beneficient oppor-
tunities to native people the mission, as noted ebove, consisted -
not only of a church but a school and hospital as well. The impor-
tance of providing health care to native people was evidenced in
the reconstruction of the hospital twice following fires which des-
troyed their facilities in 1909 and 1914. The school provided an
opportunity to learn skills which would allow native people to
operate in the encroaching non-native culture of American immigrants
to Alaska. The church served to instruct them in the ways of
Christianity. Native people were encouraged to abandon the semi-
subterranean houses which they occupied elsewhere by being granted
Tand where they were "allowed to build (log homes) under certain
considerations affecting their behavior, the land remaining in the
posession of the Mission (U.S. Survey 1906:384).
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Throughout the 20th century, aaents of the mission included
priests, deacons, deaconesses and lay readers as well as doctors
and nurses who through the Christian ethic of the church served
to promote the welfare of native people. With natives inhabiting
mission land, the mission could effectively serve the people who
formed a new community centered around the Mission of Our Saviour
Stil1l, the activities of the church and its personnel brought
some changes to the traditional way of life.

Native people lived a 1ife out on the land, travelling many
miles as part of their annual subsistence cycle in order to par-
take of their surrounding natural resources such as caribou, moose,
bear, as well as salmon, araylina and whitefish. Traditional
village sites were strategically located in order that a multinle
of food resources could be efficiently procured. As the mission
grew, native peonle settled in a permanent village, practiced new
religious teachings, were given medical attention as they were
exposed to alien diseases, and buried their dead in the mission
cemetery.

After operating for over 40 years, the Tanana Mission was vacated.
The school at the Indian village closed in 1940. 1In 1945, a new
hospital was built by the Office of Indian Affairs three miles
below the mission at the then predominately white community of
Tanana where a new Episcopal church, St. James', was eredted several
years earlier (The Alaskan Churchman 1947). Native peonle 1iving
on the mission Tand also moved, establishing new residences at Tanana.
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Today the past history of the Tanana Mission is embodied in the
church structure with its associated cemetery. While most of the
other buildings and houses that formed the mission consist of archae-
ological remains, the church and cemetery are prominent on the bank
of the Yukon River above the modern community of Tanana. This church,
still unique among Alaskan architecture, represents the establishment
of a new 1ife style among native neople. In offering the opportunity
to learn new ways, it encouraged native people to adopt Christian
doctrines and to settle in a permanent village so that children could
be instructed in non-native ways at school. The church became impor-
tant in the life events of native individuals and families as the
newborn were baptized, counles were married and the deceased were laid
to rest in the Christian services conducted in the church.
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cemetery which surrounds the church building as should the 1ine

from the west corner to the south. The west-south Tine approxi-
mately follows the Teft bank of the dry creek bed and encompasses
the archaeological remains of the deaconess' home and out buildings.

See sketch map on Property Map Form.



